VILLAGE OF ANTIOCH BOARD OF TRUSTEES
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
Village of Antioch, Lake County, lllinois
Municipal Building: 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL 60002
June 11, 2025

l. CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Gartner called the June 11, 2025 Committee of the Whole meeting of the Board of
Trustees to order at 7:43 pm at the Antioch Municipal Building located at 874 Main Street, Antioch, IL
and via Zoom.

II. ROLL CALL

Roll call indicated the following Trustees were present: Macek, Bluthardt, McNeill, Martinez,
Pierce and Pedersen. Also present were Mayor Gartner, Attorney Miller, Administrator Guttschow and
Clerk Romine.

lll. Absent Trustees Wishing to Attend Remotely
There were no Trustees wishing to attend remotely.

IV. Mayoral Report
None.

Citizens Wishing to Address the Board
None.

V. Regular Business
1. Approval of the May 28, 2025 Committee of the Whole meeting minutes as
presented - Trustee Bluthardt moved, seconded by Trustee Pedersen, to approve the May 28, 2025
Committee of the Whole meeting minutes as presented.
Upon roll call, the vote was:
YES: 6: Macek, Bluthardt, McNeill, Martinez, Pierce and Pedersen.
NO: 0.
ABSENT: 0.
THE MOTION CARRIED.

1. Discussion regarding a Fire Alarm Monitoring Program with the Antioch Fire District —
Chief Cokefair provided a status update stating that they have provided a sample contract to the village
attorney for review. The intent of the program is to enhance call times and responses.

Mayor Gartner asked what the current requirement is for businesses. Chief Cokefair responded
that a fire alarm for any business in the village is required, which will require a service. He also
discussed proposed cost.

Representatives from FSS presented data on pricing, comparing costs with neighboring
communities serviced by FSS. Mayor Gartner asked if all current systems would be compatible. Mr.
Newman said 95% the systems put in are compatible, with the exception of a few older systems.

Trustee Bluthardt asked if this would mandate any business with a fire alarm to use FSS, and if
they are the sole provider in other communities serviced. Mr. Handy with FSS responded that they are
the sole provider because they are establishing a network and providing the service. Chief Cokefiar
said Lakecomm has agreed to have one provider come in, which is FSS. He added that right now



businesses are allowed to connect to any servicing center they choose. The fire inspector would work
on enforcement along with FSS. The fire inspector has been able to hit every business and is briefing
them on the possible transition.

Trustee Pierce confirmed that this is a mandated cost to businesses, but not a cost to the
village. He doesn’t see why the village is required to mandate this, and not the First Fire Protection
District. Chief Cokefair said it was the advice of their attorney to have the Village approve the item first
and the Fire District to follow suit.

Trustee Martinez confirmed that this will streamline access to services.
The Fire District will continue the conversation with the Village.

2. Presentation of the final design development package for the new Public Works Facility —
Mayor Gartner said this is not the last time this will come to the Village for review, stating that all of the
bids will have to come back to the Board for approval.

Director Heimbrodt said this is a milestone for the project since its inception in 2022. Design
changes were made to accommodate the budget. He introduced representatives from Williams
Architects and FQC to present the design.

Mr. Mark Rhode, Williams Architects, presented the construction documents for the proposed
new public works facility including the site plan, alternates, elevations, renderings, design and
landscaping.

Trustee Macek asked if there is a cost savings to having our own fuel station. Administrator
Guttschow said that staff is working on analyzing the numbers, and should have them ready when
presenting the bids.

Mr. Mark Winger from FQC presented the projected cost estimates for the project. He
presented the total project construction cost as $13,432,048, and the total project cost is $15,484,492.
He further discussed the potential alternates for the project that will be included in the bid package for
the Village Board to consider when approving the bids. He discussed the timeline, going out to bid on
the 24, and a bid opening on July 17. Following the bid opening, scope reviews will be completed, and
a letter of recommendation will be forwarded to the Village Board for consideration.

Trustee Macek discussed the demolition of the existing facility. Director Heimbrodt said
depending on the option of mezzanine, they may need to keep some of the existing buildings for
storage. Trustee McNeill asked Director Heimbrodt the importance of the mezzanine. Director
Heimbrodt responded that the additional storage would be considered very important for future access
and availability.

Trustee Martinez asked how many people are in the building throughout the course of an 8-hour
day. Director Heimbrodt said the water department is in and out, the administrative assistant is there all
day, as well as the director, the facility supervisor, the street supervisor and GIS Manager. Director
Heimbrodt provided an overview of the current facilities for the department, including the EPA
recommendation to relocate the existing salt barn.

Trustee Pierce agrees the fuel island may be a good option for future cost savings. He asked if
an auxiliary building dedicated to storage would offer more cost savings than a mezzanine that requires



an elevator. Director Heimbrodt said they are looking at other options that were not previously
considered.

Trustee Pedersen recommended an annual cost analysis on fuel costs since there may be more
use during the winter. Director Heimbrodt said staff will go back a few years when there were larger
snow events as well as consider police and other village vehicles.

Director Heimbrodt discussed drainage on the site, including a stormwater detention basin on
the west side of the property, stating that it will meet all the criteria of the stormwater management
ordinance, and direct any overflow toward the east in order to avoid impact to neighboring homes.

Mr. Stuart Malsh, Village resident, asked to confirm that the property was purchased with park
funds, and if that money will be diverted back to the parks. He added that he would not like to see the
fuel island in its proposed location due to the potential for leaks in the future.

There were no objections to putting this design out to bid for the Village Board’s consideration.

3. Discussion regarding a proposed policy related to credit card fees — Mayor Gartner said
there was previously a waiver of credit card fees, and the costs passed on to the Village. He asked the
Board if they would be in favor of passing on the credit card fee to the users. Trustees asked if the fee
would apply to credit cards or debit cards. Finance Director Peterson attempted to build out details on
the fees based on the information available to him. Director Kotloski said the program registration
charges the payment, and takes the service fee from the program cost.

Trustee Pierce discussed fees already charged by software programs, and the potential costs to
the village in absorbing those fees. Director Kotloski would like to pass the credit card processing fee
to the user, which would not completely eliminate our fees, but would reduce it by about 98%.

Trustee Pedersen said she is always charged the credit card fee, and people are used to seeing
that. She doesn’t see why the village shouldn’t recoup that cost.

Staff will do further research, and it was the consensus of the board to move this item forward
for consideration.

4. Continued Discussion regarding an ordinance amending sections 4-2B-6 and 4-14-4 of
the Antioch Village Code regarding licensees selling products containing Tetrahydrocannabinol
— Trustees discussed the product and enforcement of its sales to minors. Mr. Adam Kosh, business
owner, understands the concerns raised by the Board, and the ban on certain entities from selling these
products. He said his interest lies in the THC drinks only, and said everyone is getting into the
production of these sales.

Trustee Pierce spoke of the other businesses in town that may sell these products to minors.

Those present discussed the loophole in the US Farm bill, which is a different regulation than
the Cannabis Tax Act.

. Kosh recommended including a requirement that it only be sold to those 21 and over, and a
possible include a distance requirement from the sales at the front of the store.

Trustee Bluthardt said that this product is available everywhere, and is struggling to understand
if we are trying to do something good at the expense of our local businesses.



Chief Guttschow and the Board discussed enforcement, availability, and the lack of regulations
on sales. They agreed that the attorney needs to look at what can be done from a legal standpoint.
Chief Guttschow said there really is no clear path to differentiate between the drinks and flower or
edible formats of this product. He believes repealing this ordinance would be a broad relaxation of the
ordinance back to the flower based products previously sold in the stores.

Trustee McNeill discussed the impact to parents and small business owners, and would like to
know if there’s something we can legally do, including stricter penalties for those who do not follow the
regulations. She also recommended a restriction on the milligrams contained in the products.

Trustee Martinez discussed the impact to foot traffic and sales tax revenue to businesses that
sell these products and likes the idea of regulating the distance of sales from the store entrance.

Trustees agreed that additional legal research is required. Staff will discuss with the attorneys
to discuss when preparing for the next agenda.

VI. Other Business
None.

VIl. Department Reports —

Community Development — Director Coppari said the updated ICC 2024 code update will be presented
at the next COW meeting. He will mail a letter out to construction related businesses. He is working
with the building department and assisting with zoning reviews and enforcement of the Antioch
shopping center.

Finance — Director Peterson discussed his requests for information from the auditors, BS&A, and stated
the auditors will begin the preliminary audit tomorrow. He discussed the arbitrage, allowable yield on
investments, and charges owed back to the IRS, He said he will need to look into any future potential
costs. He commended IT Manager Amy Pisciotto on her work with the data extraction in preparation for
the software transition.

Police — Deputy Chief Smith discussed community outreach, and reminded the Board that this Saturday
is the Special Olympics torch run. Trustee Martinez asked if additional patrols are scheduled at Sequoit
Creek Park, and if foot patrol is being considered. Chief Guttschow responded that foot patrol is a
common job activity during unallocated time, including neighborhood patrols and walking the parks.
Chief Guttschow discussed department staffing, vacancy rates, and increases in calls, and championed
the way the department has allocated available resources.

VIIl. EXECUTIVE SESSION —
None.

IX. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further discussion, the Village Board of Trustees Committee of the Whole meeting
adjourned at 9:44pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori K. Romine, RMC/CMC
Village Clerk



	I.  CALL TO ORDER

